
CASE NO. 164-AT-25 
SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM #1 
September 11, 2025

 
Petitioner:   Zoning Administrator 

 
Request:   Amend the Champaign County Zoning Ordinance as follows regarding 

the keeping of animals in Residential Districts within 1,000 feet of a 
home rule municipality: 
1.   Add the following definition to Section 3.0 Definitions: “URBAN 

ANIMALS” that are animals that may be kept in a Residential 
Zoning District within 1,000 feet of a home rule municipality. 

 
2. Amend Section 5.2 as follows: 

a. Add a Footnote to the Table of Authorized Uses for “URBAN 
ANIMALS” in the R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and R-5 Zoning Districts. 

 
3. Add new Section 7.8 to establish regulations including but not 

limited to: 
a. Limit the number of URBAN ANIMALS that may be kept on a 

lot in a Residential District within 1,000 feet of a home rule 
municipality. 

 
b. Establish minimum requirements for the housing and care of 

URBAN ANIMALS on a lot in a Residential District within 
1,000 feet of a home rule municipality. 

 
c. Require that the keeping of URBAN ANIMALS on a lot in a 

Residential District within 1,000 feet of a home rule 
municipality must be registered with the Department of Planning 
and Zoning. 

 
Location:  Unincorporated Champaign County 

 
Time Schedule for Development:  As soon as possible     

 
Prepared by:  John Hall, Zoning Administrator 
           Charlie Campo, Senior Planner 

 
MUNICIPAL PROTESTS 
 
A protest from the Village of Mahomet was received on May 30, 2025.  See attached. The Protest 
requests that Champaign County adopt limits on the keeping of animals within 1,000 feet of the Village 
of Mahomet. 
 
Village of Mahomet limits on keeping of animals is included as Attachment B. 
 
A protest from the City of Champaign was received on June 23, 2025. See attached. The City of 
Champaign requests that Champaign County withdraw or revise the amendment to be consistent (the 
same as) the City’s limits on the keeping animals. 
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LETTER FROM AVERIE FIELD, DVM 
 
A letter of strong dissent was received from Averie Field, DVM on June 25, 2025.  See attached.  Ms. 
Field urges Champaign County to discard the proposed text amendment but also recommends the 
following changes to the amendment should Champaign County decide to pursue the amendment: 
 
1.         Limit the amendment to properties that are less than one acre in area. 
2.         Revise the limit on laying hens (no alternative limit is suggested). 
3.         Establish a grandfathering clause or exemptions for current farms. 
4.         Make an allowance for “…expedited, reduced-fee, or fee-free…” rezoning. 
5.         Allow an 18 to 24 month period for implementation. 
6.         Collaborate with leaders within the affected communities to ensure no under burden 
 
An email of similar comment was also received from Michael Field on June 20, 2025. 
  
ATTACHMENTS 

  
A         Village of Mahomet Protest received May 30, 2025 
B         Section 152.056 of Code of Village of Mahomet 
C City of Champaign Protest received June 23, 2025 
D Letter from Averie Field, DVM received June 25, 2025 
E Email from Michael Field received June 20, 2025 
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Charles W. Campo

From: Michael Field <michael_field.a@protonmail.com>
Sent: Friday, June 20, 2025 2:56 PM
To: Charles W. Campo
Subject: RE: Zoning at 1903 Brownfield

CAUTION: External email, be careful when opening.  

 

Thank you for the information on re-zoning, Charlie. As the proposal stands, we are very much concerned about the 
future of this property if we are not able to achieve re-zoning. We are also concerned there may be an influx of 
individuals re-zoning their properties if this were to be approved as written and wanted to get information ahead of 
time to be ahead of the rush. That said, we believe this proposed change would require significant modification to 
allow the current responsible small agriculture production to continue without re-zoning or moving away from the 
1000-foot perimeter.  

Having read through the proposed change, my first suggestion is to simply limit the scope of the change to certain 
lot sizes. These rules very much make sense for someone on a half-acre lot in a suburb, but are not sensible for lots 
greater than 1 acre. Enforcing these rules across all, many who have larger lots than 1 acre, is unnecessary, 
especially when there are existing noise and animal welfare ordinances in place that should be enforced if a 
situation, like the one that prompted this proposed change, were to occur again. We would strongly encourage the 
proposal to be amended to apply only to lots less than 1.00 acres, as lots smaller than that are not very well suited 
for larger animals, and land owners who are serious about small farming the right way, are going to have lots larger 
than one acre anyways. I do have recommendations for other changes that will be absolutely necessary if there is 
wide support to enforce this proposed ordinance on larger properties in addition to small properties. 

In the proposed amendment, the allotted urban animals are limited to the equivalent of 18 chickens in a 20,000 
square foot lot. With our lot being more than five times that size, it is absurd that we should also be limited to 18 
chickens, even though we have a coop and run suitable, per the Champaign city regulations, for 32 chickens, with 
more than enough room for them in their run as well. With appropriate husbandry and management, an arbitrary cut-
off number is unnecessarily restrictive.  

It is also important to address the discrepancy between the proposed amendment and the Champaign city 
regulations regarding coop and run space. Champaign city requires a total of 10 square feet of space per bird 
between the coop and the run, while the proposal requires 20 square feet. For reference, the Humane Farm Animal 
Care (HFAC) "Certified Humane Free Range" standard is merely two square feet per bird. While I do not believe we 
need to require that little space, as it would require much more frequent cleaning and is designed for full-time 
production poultry operations, 20 square feet is entirely impractical and ten is much more reasonable. I recommend 
modifying the proposal to align with the Champaign City hen space requirement of 10 square feet per chicken.  

In all, it is evident that this proposed amendment is designed to achieve two things: maintain animal welfare in the 
county and maintain noise to acceptable levels. Both of these things can be enforced without this proposed 
ordinance. As it is currently written, this proposed ordinance change would shut down many small agriculture 
operations around the Champaign-Urbana area and would be detrimental to the county if changes were not made. It 
is clear that the drafters of this proposal only kept their sights on smaller properties in the affected area without 
considering the potential impact on larger properties that are suitable for hoofstock and semi-rural agricultural 
activities. I will also note that the Urbana Township Supervisor, Drew Smith, has expressed his dissent for these 
ordinance changes, and shares my concern for protecting small agriculture in Champaign County. 

- Michael Field 
 
Sent with Proton Mail secure email.  
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On Tuesday, June 17th, 2025 at 11:37 AM, Charles W. Campo <cwc43700@champaigncountyil.gov> 
wrote: 
 

Hello Michael Field, 
  
Currently the proposed changes to the regulations regarding the keeping of animals on residentially 
zoned parcels is only a draft and hasn’t been approved by the Zoning Board or the County Board, so 
keeping animals on your property is an allowed use.  Should it become necessary to change the 
zoning on your property at some time in the future the process could be done by a property owner 
without the need for an attorney.  Below is a link to the Zoning Map Amendment Application for your 
reference, but such a change isn’t necessary at this time.  If you have any other questions, please 
let me know. 
Application_Petition_Zoning_Amendment.pdf 
  
Charlie Campo 
Zoning OƯicer 
Champaign County Department of Planning and Zoning 
1776 East Washington Street 
Urbana, IL 61802 
cwc43700@champaigncountyil.gov ph:217-384-3708 
  
  

From: Michael Field <michael_field.a@protonmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, June 16, 2025 2:11 PM 
To: Charles W. Campo <cwc43700@champaigncountyil.gov> 
Subject: Zoning at 1903 Brownfield 
  

CAUTION: External email, be careful when opening.  

  
Charlie, 
  
After talking with my wife, we are investigating the re-zoning process for our property at 1903 
Brownfield Rd in Urbana Township from R-1 to Ag or split. This is an unfamiliar process for us and 
we would like to know what the roadmap looks like for getting this done to see if it is reasonable for 
us to do. I assume there is an application and fees that must be submitted, but what else must be 
done? Is it common to hire an attorney to assist in the process? 
  
Thanks, 
- Michael Field 
  
Sent with Proton Mail secure email.  
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